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A HOME of HISTORY
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f the brick Greek revival mansion 
at 1925 F Street could talk, it 
would have quite a story to tell.

Within the walls of its famed salon, presidents, policymakers, 
journalists, and countless members of Congress dined and delib-
erated the nation’s most pressing matters, from the founding 
of NATO to the ownership of the Panama Canal. Long before 
it flew the GW flag, the three-story building was a Civil War 
office, a private residence, and a place for Washington’s elite to 
sip cocktails and socialize. Today, this house of many milestones 
is home to GW President Steven Knapp. 

The first GW president to have a permanent residence on 
the Foggy Bottom Campus, Dr. Knapp and his wife, Diane 
Robinson Knapp, say they are committed to restoring the F 
Street House as a gathering place. Since moving into the house 
last year, the Knapps have hosted luncheons, dinners, and other 
receptions for the GW community and distinguished visitors, 
ensuring the house will continue to be a fixture for private but 
spirited conversations on issues of social, cultural, and intellec-
tual importance to the University and the world beyond.

“For many decades, the house served as a venue for discus-
sions of national and global issues,” Dr. Knapp says, “and we 
look forward to reviving the tradition.” 

STEP INSIDE ITS WHITE-FRAMED DOOR AND 
FEEL HISTORY UNFOLD.  Built in 1849 for U.S. Navy 
Captain Charles Steedman, the F Street House was used as 
the Office of the Commissary-General of Prisoners during the 
Civil War and became part of the Union Army headquarters. 
It was sold in 1868 to Washington businessman Alexander 
Ray, owner of Ray Mill in Georgetown and one of the largest 
Georgetown waterfront landholders, and it remained in his 
family until the early years of the 20th century. 

In 1920, American University purchased the property with 
an eye on expanding downtown but instead leased the home 
in 1923 to socialite Laura Curtis, the “uncrowned queen of the 
Republican party.” Curtis hosted countless parties in the salon 
for Washington society and, with the support of hundreds in 
her vast social network, transformed the parlor into a dinner 
and social club and began charging a membership fee during 
the height of Prohibition. In the mid-1930s, after she married 
John Gross and moved to his home, the property continued to 
be managed as a members-only dinner and social place known 
as the F Street Club. 

Built in 1849, the F Street House was a fixture of Washington society 
for more than half a century. Today it is the home of University 
President Steven Knapp and his wife, Diane Robinson Knapp.W
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...and MYSTERY THE PRESIDENT’S 
REFURBISHED HOUSE 
REVEALS A STORIED PAST
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TOP:  During the Civil War, the house was used as the Office of the 
Commissary-General of Prisoners and became part of the Union Army 
headquarters. This photo was taken circa 1864. BOTTOM: After a year 
of remodeling, President Steven Knapp and his wife, Diane Robinson 
Knapp, moved into the F Street House in 2008. Modern improvements 
include disability access, energy-efficient windows, a private outdoor 
terrace, and a green roof. To maintain the tradition of the F Street House, 
professional photography of the house’s interior is not allowed.

FROM ROOM TO ROOM, THERE IS 
ALWAYS A SECRET TO PASS. Many of the 20th 
century’s leading political and cultural figures, assured of 
privacy in the old mansion, dined at the F Street Club. 
It was so much a part of the Washington scene that in 
1938 The Washington Star reported, “…members feel that 
the 1925 F Street Club is just about as permanent as the 
Lincoln Memorial, the Washington Monument, and the 
cherry blossoms around the Tidal Basin every spring.” 

In the late 1950s, Vice President Richard Nixon 
brought his Soviet counterpart there to debate the Cold 
War. After President John F. Kennedy’s assassination, 
friends of Jackie Kennedy held a cocktail party at the 
club to comfort the widow. And in 1980, President-
elect Ronald Reagan chose the club as the site of a 
candlelight dinner to introduce himself and his wife, 
Nancy, to Washington society. Presidents Jimmy Carter, 
George H.W. Bush, and Bill Clinton all attended events 
at the club.

MAKE YOURSELF COMFORTABLE, AND 
STAY AWHILE.  GW continued the F Street Club 
tradition after purchasing the property in 1974, and the 
mansion was added to the National Register of Historic 
Places in 1990. 

In 1999, the F Street Club closed. Staying true to 
the mansion’s tradition as a place for friends to gather 
and share ideas, GW rededicated the building as its 
Alumni House. 

The historic structure became home to GW’s 16th 
president, Steven Knapp, and his wife, Diane Robinson 
Knapp, in 2008 when they said they wanted to be an inte-
gral part of campus life and the Foggy Bottom community. 
Renovations preserve the home’s distinguished heritage 
while incorporating sustainability measures. 

“The house is remarkably situated: next to the World 
Bank, across the street from two student residence halls, 
around the corner from both the Elliott School and 
the Law School, and four blocks due west of the White 
House,” Dr. Knapp says. “This gives us an unprecedented 
opportunity to live in the midst of the GW campus and 
experience firsthand the rhythms of campus life.” 
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THE F STREET HOUSE
«  A  T I M E L I N E  »
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